












From: J. Howard Pfrommer, P.E. [mailto:hpfrommer@nlja.com]  
Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 8:28 AM 
To: Rupert, Jim <jrupert@boltonct.org> 
Cc: Sandra Pierog <pierog.sandra@gmail.com>; Kelly, Barbara <bkelly@boltonct.org>; McCavanagh, 
Kathleen <kmccavanagh@boltonct.org>; Dimock, Lance <ldimock@boltonct.org>; Joseph M. Dillon, P.E. 
<jdillon@nlja.com> 
Subject: RE: Mark Anthony - Bolton Wetlands 

 
Jim – we reviewed the Hemlock bridge drawings received in the e-mail immediately below. We assume 
that the proposed structure depicted on the drawings is intended to be temporary. If so, it would likely 
become permanent. Or, it may be intended to be permanent. Comments below assume the proposed 
structure to be permanent (note that I have not visited to the site): 
 
1. Based on the contributing 5 square mile watershed, a 100-year design discharge with 1’ of 
underclearance and 1’ maximum backwater over natural would be required by the CTDOT Drainage 
Manual. Although the proposed waterway opening is larger than the previously existing culvert barrel 
and proposed low chord appears to be no lower than the top of the previously existing culvert barrel, 
without performing detailed hydraulic modeling including any backwater affect from the Hop River and 
knowing the existing embankment “overtopping” elevation, whether or not the proposed waterway 
area or the superstructure low chord elevation complies with the CTDOT Drainage Manual cannot be 
determined. 
 
2. Besides a local wetland permit, a U.S. Army Corps of Engineers/CTDEEP permit is needed for the work 
(permanent or temporary). The simplest Corps permit application to prepare would be Self-Verification 
(SV) under Corps CT General Permit (GP) #19. In order to qualify for this permit, among other things, the 
project must: 1) be designed for a 100-year discharge with 1’ freeboard; 2) The use of solid parapets in a 
roadway low point are discouraged (I do not know if this crossing location is in a roadway low point); 3) 
unconfined in-stream work is only allowed between July 1 and Sept 30. Cofferdams can be installed and 
removed anytime except in April, May and June, and work behind cofferdams can occur any time of 
year. A CTDEEP 401 Water Quality Certification is automatically granted for Corps SV submissions by 
simply copying the CTDEEP with the Corps submission. The SV still requires notification/review prior to 
submission to the Corps, of CTDEEP Fisheries, the CT State Historic Preservation Office, the CT Tribal 
Historic Preservation Office, CTDEEP Natural Diversity Database, and the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service. 
 
3. If the project does not qualify for SV under the Corps GP #19 because the hydraulics cannot be 
confirmed, or work is proposed outside the in-stream window period, or for any other reason, it would 
then appear to be eligible for a Pre-Construction Notification (PCN). The PCN application is rigorous AND 
the CTDEEP has their own rigorous PCN application. We have projects with PCN submissions that are still 
waiting for their permit from the Corps after 15 months with no end in site. Under this scenario, it 
appears the project would be considered an “Emergency” by the Corps because replacement of the 
crossing cannot wait that long for a PCN permit to be processed. Qualification as an emergency is 
required to be confirmed with the Corps before construction start, then the applicant can perform the 
work, and then file for the permits after work completion. 
 
4. Typical Corps/CTDEEP time of year restrictions for unconfined in-stream construction is July 1 to Sept 
30. It is not clear if a cofferdam is anticipated for installation of the riprap in-the-dry, or whether it is 
intended to be placed in the stream unconfined. 
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5. Due to the poor approach hydraulic alignment to the crossing inlet, there is a high likelihood for scour 
along the upstream embankment as well as the embankment through the waterway. Riprap is proposed 
to protect the slope through the waterway and may need to be extended along the approach roadway 
embankment. The drawings do not indicate the size of riprap or whether it is to be set on bedding 
material or geotextile, or grouted or not. No embedded toe is shown for the riprap. The riprap should be 
carefully designed and constructed to protect the bottom of the bridge footings which are proposed 
above the stream bottom and could be susceptible to scour particularly given the poor approach 
hydraulic alignment and potentially inadequate proposed waterway opening. 
 
6. Footings for transportation structures are required to be set 4’ below grade for frost protection. The 
proposed footing burial depth appears less than that. 
 
7. The drawings include a detail of reinforced elastomeric bearing pads for the beams to be set on. 
However, other drawings do not show these bearings. It should be confirmed that the beams will indeed 
be set on these bearings. 
 
8. The drawings include details for post tensioning of the beams. It should be confirmed that the beams 
will indeed be post tensioned. 
 
9. I do not know how wide the existing road is but the proposed bridge will provide a 12’ +/- curb-to-
curb width which is a single lane. 
 
10. Geotextile should be placed behind the block abutments to prevent backfill material from washing 
between block joints and creating potholes or sinkholes in the approach roadway. 
 
Please contact me if there are any questions. 
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